
 

 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Gloria Cota 
Councilmember 

 
Elvira Osuna 

Councilmember 
 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

 
Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

 
Agendas/Minutes:  

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

 
***DUE TO COVID-19, SEATING CAPACITY IS  

LIMITED TO NO MORE THAN 10 ATTENDEES***   
 

***MEETING BROADCAST LIVE ON TOWN OF GUADALUPE FACEBOOK PAGE*** 
 

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE GUADALUPE TOWN COUNCIL 

 
THURSDAY, JULY 8, 2021 

6:00 P.M. 
GUADALUPE TOWN HALL 

9241 SOUTH AVENIDA DEL YAQUI, MUSEUM ROOM  
GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Guadalupe Town Council 
and to the public that the Guadalupe Town Council will hold a meeting, open to the public, on Thursday, 
July 8, 2021, at 6:00 P.M., at Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 South Avenida del Yaqui, Museum Room, 
Guadalupe, Arizona.  

 
AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
C. INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  June 24, 2021 Special Meeting Minutes 
 
E. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  An opportunity is provided to the public to address the Council on items 
that are not on the agenda or included on the consent agenda. A total of 3 minutes will be provided for 
the Call to the Audience agenda item unless the Council requests an exception to this limit. Please note 
that those wishing to comment on agenda items posted for action will be provided the opportunity at the 
time the item is heard. 
 
F. MAYOR and COUNCIL PRESENTATIONS:  None. 
 
G. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS: 
 
1.  COVID-19 ACTION UPDATE:  Council will receive an update from Town staff regarding current 
Town of Guadalupe COVID-19 positive case rates, scheduled testing, vaccination information, Town 
service and steps taken to safeguard public health and safety in response to the Coronavirus.  Council 
may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk.  Material for this agenda item will be provided at 
the meeting. 
 
2. RESCIND REQUIRING FACE COVERINGS IN PUBLIC PROCLAMATION (JUNE 19, 2020):  
Council will consider and may take action to rescind the June 19, 2020, Proclamation issued by Mayor 
Molina requiring all individuals within the jurisdiction of the Town of Guadalupe to wear face coverings 
in all places of public accommodation, if they are or will be in contact with other individuals who are not 
in their household, and / or required in all spaces where it is difficult or impossible to maintain physical 
distancing.  Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk.   
 
H. TOWN MANAGERS’ COMMENTS 
I. COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
J. ADJOURNMENT 

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


 
 

 
July 2, 2021 

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and Town Council  

From:  Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk  

RE:  July 8, 2021, Town Council Regular Meeting Information Report 

 
The purpose of this report is to provide brief information regarding each of the meeting’s agenda items.   

Agenda Items: 

D1. JUNE 24, 2021, SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES (PAGES 3 – 4). 

G1. COVID-19 ACTION UPDATE (MATERIAL WILL BE PROVIDED AT THE MEETING):  Staff will provide an 
update regarding current Town of Guadalupe COVID-19 positive case rates, scheduled testing, vaccination 
information, Town service and steps taken to safeguard public health and safety in response to the Coronavirus.   

G2. RESCIND PROCLAMATION REQUIRING FACE COVERINGS IN PUBLIC – JUNE 19, 2020 (PAGES 5 – 6):  
This Council action is to rescind Mayor Molina’s Proclamation requiring face coverings in public that was implemented 
on June 19, 2020.  On June 17, 2020, Governor Ducey issued an Executive Order 2020-40 allowing for cities and 
towns to adopt policies regarding the wearing of face coverings in public for the purpose of mitigating the spread of 
COVID-19.  At the June 19, 2020, Regular Council Meeting, Mayor Molina read into the record a Proclamation requiring 
all individuals within the jurisdiction of the Town of Guadalupe to wear face coverings in all places of public 
accommodation, if they are or will be in contact with other individuals who are not in their household, AND / OR required 
in all spaces where it is difficult or impossible to maintain physical distancing.  The rationale for rescinding the face 
coverings in public proclamation is because of the downward trend in the COVID-19 infection rates, and the on-going 
and increasing number of vaccinations within our community.  

Page 2



 

1 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Gloria Cota 
Councilmember 

 
Elvira Osuna 

Councilmember 
 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

 
Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

 
Agendas/Minutes:  

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

 
 
 

Minutes 
Town Council Special Meeting 

June 24, 2021 
 

Minutes of the Guadalupe Town Council Special Meeting held on Thursday, June 24, 2021, immediately 
following the Regular Council Meeting beginning at 6:00 P.M., at Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 South 
Avenida del Yaqui, Museum Room, Guadalupe, Arizona. 

A. Mayor Molina called the meeting to order at 7:26 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
Councilmembers Present:  Mayor Valerie Molina and Councilmember Joe Sánchez.  The following 
councilmembers participated via video conference:  Vice Mayor Ricardo Vital, Councilmember Mary 
Bravo, Councilmember Elvira Osuna, and Councilmember Anita Cota Soto 
 
Councilmember Absent:  Councilmember Gloria Cota 
 
Staff Present:  Jeff Kulaga – Town Manager / Clerk and and David Ledyard – Town Attorney (via video 
conference); and, Jennifer Drury – Assistant to the Town Manager, Cachi Castorena, MCSO Deputy  
 
D. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  No one spoke. 
 
E. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS: 

 
1. PUBLIC HEARING – FINAL BUDGET ADOPTION (RESOLUTION NO. R2021.14)  
Motion by Councilmember Osuna to open the public hearing; second by Councilmember 
Sánchez.  Motion passed unanimously on a voice vote 6-0. 
 
Mayor Molina opened the public hearing and stated that this agenda item is to receive public input on 
the Fiscal Year 2021/22 Town of Guadalupe budget in the amount of $21,067,259, as tentatively 
adopted by the Town Council on May 27, 2021.   
 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk, stated that the purpose of increasing the budget by $10,000,000 
was to account for receiving potential grant funding, while not exceeding the allowable expenditure 
limitation.  The General Fund provides funding for the majority of Town operations.   
 
Mayor Molina clarified that the $11,000,000 in the Grant Fund is for grant funding that may or may not 
be awarded to the Town.  Grant funding is not guaranteed.     
 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk, stated that no public input has been received by Town staff 
regarding the tentative budget, as adopted by the Town Council on May 27, 2021.   
 
No members of the public spoke on this agenda item. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bravo to close the public hearing; second by Councilmember Osuna.  
Motion passed unanimously on a voice vote 6-0. 
 
Mayor Molina closed the public hearing. 
 

Page 3

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


 

2 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Gloria Cota 
Councilmember 

 
Elvira Osuna 

Councilmember 
 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

 
Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

 
Agendas/Minutes:  

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

Held a public hearing to receive public input on the Fiscal Year 2021/22 Town of Guadalupe budget in 
the amount of $21,067,259, as tentatively adopted by the Town Council on May 27, 2021.  (related to 
G2) 

2. FISCAL YEAR 2021/22 FINAL BUDGET ADOPTION (RESOLUTION NO. R2021.14) 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk, stated that Council directed staff to increase the Grant Fund by an 
additional $10,000,000.  The proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2021/22 for the Town of Guadalupe now 
totals $21,067,259.    

Mayor Molina noted that the budget and associated presentations are available on the Town’s website.   
 
Motion by Vice Mayor Vital to approve agenda item D2; second by Councilmember Osuna.  
Motion passed unanimously on a voice vote 6-0. 

Councilmembers adopted RESOLUTION NO. R2021.14 approving the Fiscal Year 2021/22 Town of 
Guadalupe budget in the amount of $21,067,259. (related to G1) 
 
E. TOWN MANAGERS’ COMMENTS 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk 

o Thanked Council for adopting the budget. 
 
F. COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
Councilmember Bravo 

o Thanked the Town Manager / Clerk and wished him well. 
 
Mayor Molina 

o Thanked the Town Manager / Clerk and wished him well. 

G. ADJOURNMENT 
Motion by Councilmember Bravo to adjourn the Regular Council Meeting; second by 
Councilmember Osuna.  Motion passed unanimously on a voice vote 6-0. 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:36 p.m. 
   ____________________________ 

          Valerie Molina, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
__________________________________ 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Town Clerk 
 
CERTIFICATION 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the June 24, 
2021, Town of Guadalupe, Town Council Special Meeting.  I further certify the meeting was duly called 
and held, and that a quorum was present. 
 
__________________________________ 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Town Clerk 
 

Page 4

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


 

 
 

PROCLAMATION and CONTINUED DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY 
 

COVID-19 – REQUIRING FACE COVERINGS IN PUBLIC 
 

  WHEREAS, on January 31, 2020, Secretary Alex Azar of the United States Department of Health and Human Services, declared a 
public health emergency to address the 2019 novel coronavirus  (COVID-19); and 

 
 WHEREAS, on March 11, 2020, the Governor of the State of Arizona issued a declaration of Public Health Emergency due to the 
necessity to prepare for, prevent, respond to, and mitigate the spread of COVID-19; and 

 
 WHEREAS, on March 19, 2020, the Mayor of Guadalupe Arizona issued a proclamation declaring a COVID-19 local emergency in 
the Town of Guadalupe to address COVID-19; in accordance with Town Code of Ordinances, Chapter 2, Mayor and Council, Section 2-2-
4 Powers and Duties of the Mayor; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on May 12, 2020, the Governor of Arizona issued Executive Order 2020-36 allowing for the gradual opening of 
businesses with his “Stay Healthy, Return Smarter, Return Stronger” initiative; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on June 16, 2020, the Town of Maricopa County number of COVID-19 cases per 100,000 population was 1975.6, four 
times the number for Maricopa County (as reported by the Maricopa County Public Health 495.7 cases per 100,000); and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is no vaccine, treatment or cure for COVID-19; without vaccine, treatment, or cure individuals must together 
prevent exposure to COVID-19; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on June 17, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order 2020-40 allowing for a city to adopt policies regarding the 
wearing of face coverings in public for the purpose of mitigating the spread of COVID-19; and 
 
 WHEREAS, COVID-19 continues to pose a serious public health threat for infectious disease spread to Town of Guadalupe 
residents, particularly Elders and those with underlying health conditions, if proper precautions recommended by public health officials are 
not followed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary and appropriate to take action to ensure the spread of COVID- 19 is controlled and that the residents of 
the Town of Guadalupe remain safe and healthy.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Mayor Valerie Molina, of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona, by virtue of the authority vested in me by the 
Constitution and Laws of the State, specifically A.R.S. §§ 26-311 and Guadalupe Town Code Section 2-2-4 Powers and Duties of the 
Mayor effective immediately, June 19, 2020, do hereby proclaim:  

 
A local health emergency exists in the Town of Guadalupe, Maricopa County as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic conditions, which 
impact the life and health of Town of Guadalupe residents, visitors and businesses. 
 
 IT IS FURTHER PROCLAIMED AND ORDERED that during the existence of the local health emergency all individuals within the 
jurisdiction of the Town of Guadalupe are required to wear face coverings in all places of public accommodation, if they are or will be in 
contact with other individuals who are not in their household, AND / OR required in all spaces where it is difficult or impossible to maintain 
physical distancing. Physical distancing means keeping (6) feet distance between individuals who are not in the same household.  

 
  

Page 5



 
 
These spaces include but are not limited to grocery stores, markets, dispensaries, restaurants and bars, gyms, youth activity facilities, retail 
stores, special events, and public transit. Businesses that interact with the public must require employees to wear face coverings. While 
wearing the face covering, it is essential to maintain physical distance as it is the best defense against the spread of the COVID-19. 
 
A face covering means material that covers the nose and mouth. It can be secured to the head with ties or straps, or wrapped around the 
lower portion of the face. It can be made from materials such as cotton, silk, or linen, or be a surgical mask. A cloth face covering may be 
made or sewn by hand, as well as improvised from household items such as a bandana, scarf, t-shirt, sweatshirt or towel. A face covering 
shall be worn per guidance provided by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. 
 
A place of public accommodation means facilities, establishments, accommodations, services, commodities, or use offered to or for use 
by the general public, including public places where food or beverages are offered for sale, public places operated for temporary lodging, 
use or accommodation of those seeking health or recreation, and all establishments offering such goods or facilities, and entities soliciting 
patronage from the general public, except for religious organizations. 

 
Exceptions for face coverings will be made under the following circumstances: 

• For those who fall into the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention's guidance for those who should not wear face coverings due 
to a medical or mental health condition or developmental disability. 

• For children under 6 years old. 
• For people whose religious beliefs prevent them from wearing a face covering. 
• For restaurant patrons while they are eating or drinking. If a patron is not seated at their table, a face covering is required. 
• For individuals exercising outdoors, or while walking or exercising with other people from the same household, as long as physical 

distancing from others is maintained. For individuals congregating outdoors with other people not in their same household, face 
coverings are required when physical distancing is not maintained. 

• In settings where it is not practical or feasible to wear a face covering, including when obtaining or rendering goods or services, such 
as the receipt of dental services, medical treatments or while swimming. 

• When a person is in a personal or work office or vehicle (or similar space) where others are not present as long as the public does 
not regularly visit the space. 

• For public safety employees and/or emergency responders and/or field employees engaged in essential functions, when wearing 
the face covering would interfere with or limit their ability to carry out their duties or functions. 

• For individuals complying with the directions of public safety employees. 
 
In compliance with Executive Order No. 2020-40, enforcement of this proclamation shall focus first on education and providing guidance 
issued by the Arizona Department of Health Services, in order to promote the health and safety of Guadalupe residents and further mitigate 
the spread of COVID-19. Individuals shall be notified and be given an opportunity to comply with the proclamation before any enforcement 
action is taken to enforce this order under ARS § 26-317 (a class 1 misdemeanor).    
 
Private businesses and venues shall enforce this proclamation by asking any person failing to comply with the emergency proclamation to 
leave their premises. By allowing people / patrons to remain on the premise without a face covering, as described herein, is violation of this 
emergency proclamation. A continued failure to comply with an emergency proclamation by a business owner and/or responsible party is 
a misdemeanor under ARS § 26-317 (a class 1 misdemeanor).  
 
This proclamation shall remain in effect until its declared termination or notice of repeal or revision by the Governor of the State of Arizona 
per Paragraph 7 of Executive Order 2020-4. 

 
Proclaimed this 19th day of June, 2020 

 
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor Town of Guadalupe, Arizona 

Page 6


	07 08 21 RCM Agenda
	Informational Cover Memo
	D1.  06 24 21 Special Council Meeting Minutes
	G2.  RESCIND COVID-19 Face Mask Mandate Proclomation



